Table of Contents

CERTIFICATION MANAGER	4
Creating Certification Requirements in Certification Manager	4
Deleting Certification Requirements in Certification Manager	4
Uploading Required Certification Documents	5
Override Required Certification Documents	6
Custom Certification Requirement Types	6
ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATION MANAGER GUIDANCE	6
Water Based Paint - Submittal - NTPEP Info	6
Geosynthetics (RR, S1, S2, R1) - Submittal - NTPEP Info	7
Tack & Fog Oil	8
PAY QUANTITIES	8
Required Pay Quantity Signatures	9
PQEs in CARS	9
Creating PQEs in Quantity Manager	9
Editing PQEs	10
Checking PQEs	10
Submitting PQEs	11
Rejecting PQEs	11
Appending PQEs	11
Attaching Documents to PQEs	12
Attaching Source Documents	12
Deleting Attached Documents in CARS	13
District Finals PQE Check	13
MOBILIZATION	14
Automated Mobilization Payments in CARS	14
Subprojects & Tied Projects	14
Mobilization in Excess of 10% of the Contract Amount	14
ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES	15
DOCUMENTATION GUIDELINES FOR SELECTED ITEMS	15
Contract Bond	15
Railroad Insurance	16

CONSTRUCTION RECORDS MANUAL – SECTION 4 – PAY QUANTITIES

	State Furnished Concrete Barrier	
	Mobilization	16
	Aggregates	16
	Asphalt for Prime, Tack or Seal Coat	16
	Asphalt for Bituminous Mixes	16
	Reinforcing Steel	17
	Subgrade Preparation	17
	Water	17
	Excavation and Borrow	
	Roadway Obliteration	18
	Loose Rock Riprap	18
	Flagging and Pilot Car	
	Seeding and Sodding	18
	Pipe	19
	Permanent Pavement Marking	19
	Non-Structural Concrete	19
	Structural Concrete	19
	Manholes, Catch Basins, and Inlets	19
	Temporary Signing	19
	Posts	19
	Miscellaneous Items	19
MET	THODS OF MEASUREMENTS	20
	Weighed Materials	20
	Tickets	20
	Truck Platform Scale Use	20
	Contractor Produced Daily Haul Summaries	20
	Load Counted Material (Volume Measurement)	21
	Measured In Place	21
	Load Counts	21
STO	CKPILES AND INVOICED ITEMS	21
	Enter Stockpile/Invoiced Items in CARS	22
	Deplete Stockpile/Invoiced Items in CARS	23
	Multiple Stockpiles	

CONSTRUCTION RECORDS MANUAL – SECTION 4 – PAY QUANTITIES

ITEMS DOCUMENTED IN CARS REPORTS	24
Fuel Cost Adjustment	24
Piling/Test Piling	25
Test Piling	
Piling	27
Enter Pile/Test Pile Information in CARS	27
Mix Bitumen Reports	
Enter Mix Bitumen Information in CARS To make a Mix Bitumen Report is CARS:	
To edit or delete a mix bitumen report:	
Concrete Paving	
Enter Concrete Paving Information in CARS	
View/Print Concrete Paving Report:	
To edit or delete a concrete paving report:	
CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS	
Certification of Materials Forms (CoC's)	
How to fill out certification forms:	
Additional Guidance	
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE EXAMPLES	
Acceptable Contractor Certification	
Unacceptable Contractor Certification	
MANUFACTURE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE EXAMPLES	
Acceptable Manufacturer Certification	
Unacceptable Manufacturer Certification	
SAMPLE LETTER OF PRODUCTION COSTS	
DOCUMENTATION EXAMPLES	
PQE as Source Document	
Source Document Attached	40
Excavation	
Mulching	
Flagging	

CERTIFICATION MANAGER

The Certification Module is used to track and store documents that are required before work starts on a bid item including certificate of compliance, work drawings, and various submittals.

When a project is uploaded to CARS, the Certification Module Requirements are automatically imported and tied to the bid item for which they apply. This information is pulled from the Default RIMS Certification Table that is maintained by Construction Services. Changes to the Default Certification list should be submitted to Construction Services by the Materials Coordinator.

Prior to the Preconstruction Meeting for each project, the Materials Coordinator must review the Certification Module Requirements and customize them for the project by adding or deleting requirements. Once the requirements have been established, a Project Certifications Report should be generated in Certification Manager and delivered to the contractor.

Before any pay quantity entry for a bid item is paid, all certification requirements associated with that bid item must be satisfied. The requirements are satisfied by uploading a document and tying it to the pertinent bid item.

Bid Items that have a certification requirement are designated on Quantity Manager by displaying "Cert: Not Received." To view the required certifications, click on Not Received. Once all requirements have been satisfied, the display will change to "Cert: Received."

Creating Certification Requirements in Certification Manager

Only available to Materials Coordinator, Project Engineer, and Alternate Engineer.

- 1. Click the Certification Manager link on the main menu.
- 2. The Certification Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Click the + button to expand the bid item.
 - b. Click Add Requirement.
- 3. The Add Certification Requirement page is displayed.
 - a. Use the Requirement Category dropdown to select the Category.
 - b. Enter Spec and Code if different than the default values.
 - c. Use the Type dropdown to select type.
 - d. The Add More Rows button may be used to add multiple requirements at once. All requirements added at the same time must be of the same Category.
 - e. Use the radio button to bind the requirement(s) to the current PCN or to all tied PCNs.
 - f. Click Save.

Deleting Certification Requirements in Certification Manager

Only available to Materials Coordinator, Project Engineer, and Alternate Engineer. Requirements tied to uploaded documents cannot be deleted.

- 1. Click the Certification Manager link on the main menu.
- 2. The Certification Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Click the + button to expand the bid item.
 - b. Click the Requirement Category for the requirement to be deleted.
- 3. The Certification Requirement-Submittal page is displayed.
 - a. Click the Delete button.
 - b. Click the Confirm button.

Uploading Required Certification Documents

- 1. Click the Certification Manager link on the main menu.
- 2. The Certification Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Click the + button to expand the bid item.
 - b. Click the Requirement Category for the requirement to be modified.
- 3. The Certification Requirement-Submittal page is displayed. This page can also be accessed from Quantity Manager by clicking on the Cert: Not Received/Received link and clicking on the Category button.
 - a. Click the Add Certification button.
- 4. The Add Certification-Submittal page is displayed.
 - a. Use the browse button to upload the desired file.
 - b. Multiple files may be added using the Add More Files button.
 - c. Populate the Remarks field as needed. The Remarks field never locks.
 - d. Multiple items, even those with different Specs & Codes, can be tied to the same uploaded file using the "Bind Certification Requirements" feature:
 - i. Use the Category dropdown to select Category.
 - ii. Use the Type dropdown to select Type.
 - When searching for an item, only the bid items which match the "Category" and "Type" selected in the drop down menus will show up in the Spec & Code box. For a certification, the "Type" field corresponds to the "Certification Type" from the main Certification Manager screen:

		F	Project Certifi	cation Req	uirements Binding	s (Ma
			Category	Туре	Spec-Code	
		c	Contractor Cert	Backing	754-561 REFERENCE	e mai
		c	Contractor Cert	Hardware	754-561 REFERENCE	E MAI
		c	Contractor Cert	Posts	754-561 REFERENCE	E MAI
			Category:	Contractor C	ert V	
				Sheeting	vert 👻	
					T SHEET FOR SIGNS-T	YPE X
				754-110 FLA	T SHEET FOR SIGNS-T	YPE X
				754-112 FLA	T SHEET FOR SIGNS-T	YPE IV
					NEL FOR SIGNS-TYPE IN ERENCE MARKER-TYPE	
					ERENCE MARKER-TYPE	
						1.
			[Bind Certifi	cation Requirement(s)] (7
© 754 - 561 REFER	EN ARKER-TY	PE A Unit: E	A Total Requ		cation Requirement(s) 5 Requirements R	
			A Total Requ			
Expand Rows						
Expand Rows Requirement Category	Certification Type	Status	-			
Expand Rows Requirement Category Contractor Cert	Certification Type Backing	Status Not Received	-			
Expand Rows Requirement Category Contractor Cert Contractor Cert	Certification Type Backing Hardware	Status Not Received Not Received	-) (T

2. The "Category" and "Type" must match the "Requirement Category" & "Certification Type" from the Certification Manager home screen for the bid item to show up in the Spec & Code box.

- iii. The Spec and Code box will display every bid item on every tied project and sub project that corresponds to the Category and Type selections.
- iv. Select all the bid items that correspond to the uploaded document. To highlight multiple bid items, hold down the control button.
- v. Click the Bind Certification Requirements button.
- vi. Repeat the process with additional Categories and Types as needed.
- e. Click the Save button.
- 5. Uploaded documents will be locked after 48 hours. At this time additional documents may be uploaded, but the originals will remain.

Override Required Certification Documents

Only available to Materials Coordinator, Project Engineer, and Alternate Engineer.

- 1. Click the Certification Manager link on the main menu.
- 2. The Certification Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Click the + button to expand the bid item.
 - b. Click the Requirement Category for the requirement to be modified.
- 3. The Certification Requirement-Submittal page is displayed. This page can also be accessed from Quantity Manager by clicking on the Cert: Not Received/Received link and clicking on the Category button.
 - a. Click the Override Requirement button.
 - b. Enter the engineer's justification for the override.
 - c. Click the OK button.

Custom Certification Requirement Types

Only available to Materials Coordinator, Project Engineer, and Alternate Engineer. Use this page when adding a certification requirement type that is not on the default list.

- 1. Click the Certification Manager link on the main menu.
- 2. The Certification Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Click View Custom Cert Types
- 3. View Project Specific Certification Types page is displayed.
 - a. Click the Add button
- 4. Maintain Project Specific Certification Type page is displayed.
 - a. Enter the name of the custom cert requirement type.
 - b. Click the Save button.
- 5. Once saved, the custom certification type cannot be deleted. To add the custom certification type to a bid item as a requirement by follow <u>these steps</u>.

ADDITIONAL CERTIFICATION MANAGER GUIDANCE

This section contains additional information explaining what is required for specific items within the CARS Certification Manager.

Water Based Paint - Submittal - NTPEP Info

Water based paint bid items contain a Submittal requirement for 'NTPEP Info.' This is <u>not</u> referring to an NTPEP submittal from the Contractor to the Engineer.

The Manufacturer is responsible for providing NTPEP test results of beads and paint to NDDOT Materials & Research Division (M&R). M&R then uses the information to maintain a list of preapproved lots of paint & beads which can be used on NDDOT projects.

The Certification Manager requirement for 'NTPEP Info' is satisfied by the Engineer verifying that the lot (or lots) of paint & beads proposed for use on the project are shown on the Materials & Research – Water Based Paint website:

https://www.dot.nd.gov/divisions/materials/waterbasedmarking.htm

The Contractor Certs received from the Contractor for paint and beads must show the lot numbers which will be used on the project. After the Engineer has received this information, the Engineer navigates to the Materials & Research – Water Based Paint website to verify the Contractor's proposed lot numbers are on the NDDOT's list of preapproved materials that meet the requirements of Spec. Section 880.

Once the lot has been located within the preapproved list, the Engineer uploads a screenshot or pdf of the page showing the preapproved lot into Certification Manager. This information satisfies the 'Submittal - NTPEP Info' requirement in Certification Manager.

Geosynthetics (RR, S1, S2, R1) - Submittal - NTPEP Info

The RR, S1, S2, & R1 geosynthetic bid items contain a Submittal requirement for 'NTPEP Info.' This is <u>not</u> referring to an NTPEP submittal from the Contractor to the Engineer.

The Manufacturer is responsible having their materials tested by NTPEP prior to use on NDDOT projects. The test results are then posted on the NTPEP website: <u>https://data.ntpep.org/GTX/Products</u>

The Manufacturer Certificate of Compliance received from the Contractor must show the product name & lot numbers which will be used on the project. After the Engineer has received this information, the Engineer navigates to NTPEP website shown above to verify the Contractor's proposed product has been tested by NTPEP & meets the requirements of the NDDOT Specifications.

After using the NTPEP website search function to find the product, click the 'Test Data' tab to view the test results. The NTPEP test results look like this:

Property - Test Method	Mass/ Area ASTM D5261	Grab ASTM D4632	Grab ASTM D4632	Grab ASTM D4632	Grab ASTM D4632	Tear ASTM	Trapezoida Tear ASTM D4533	50 mm Puncture ASTM D6241	ASTM D4491	Opening	(500 hour	UV Resistance (500 hour exposure) ASTM D4355
	oz/yd2	MD Strength (Ibs)	MD Strain (%)	XD Strength (Ibs)	XD Strain (%)		XD Strength (Ibs)	Strength (Ibs)	1/sec.	mm	MD Strength Retained (%)	XD Strength Retained (%)
Mean ¹	7.3	240	65	237	107	95	109	720	1.85	0.147		
COV(%)	4.6	9.9	16.4	12.4	12.3	10.2	9	7.8	7	1.3		
Manufacturer's Claimed QC Test Value ²		180	50	180	50	75	75	475	1.4	0.212	70	70

Compare the results of the NTPEP test results to the requirements shown in Table 858-01 of the NDDOT Standard Specifications to verify the product meets the requirements.

If the product meets the Specifications, print a pdf of the NTPEP Test Data page and upload it to CARS Certification Manager under 'Submittal – NTPEP Info'. This information satisfies the 'Submittal - NTPEP Info' requirement in Certification Manager.

In Summary, the Geosynthetics Certification Manager requirement for 'NTPEP Info' is satisfied by the Engineer:

- 1. Verifying that the lot (or lots) of geosynthetics proposed for use on the project has been tested by NTPEP
- 2. Verifying the NTPEP results meet the requirements of the NDDOT Specifications
- 3. Uploading a pdf of the product's NTPEP test results page into CARS Cert. Manager under 'Submittal – NTPEP Info'.

Tack & Fog Oil

The tack & fog oil bid items contain a Submittal requirement for 'Contractor Cert.' The fields on SFN 61040 should be filled out as follows:

- Name/Description: Use the bid item name
- Material Certified: Asphalt
- Factory Identification: Manufacturer & Type of oil
 - o Flint Hills Resources, West Fargo ND, CSS-1H

If the Contractor uses a new manufacturer or type of oil during the project, then a new Contractor Cert should be submitted for the oil.

Manifests:

Upload manifests to corresponding PQE's within CARS Quantity Manager.

PAY QUANTITIES

Contract bid items are documented in CARS Quantity Manager as the work is completed and accepted. Quantity Manager uses <u>PQE</u>s (Pay Quantity Entry) to document the payments. Each PQE must be supported by measurements and descriptions of the installed bid item known as source documents. Source document information may either be entered directly in a PQE (<u>example</u>) or attached to a PQE (<u>example</u>). Use of SFN 10004, Pay Quantity Report is not necessary. If <u>SFN 10004</u> is used, it should be uploaded as an attachment to the PQE.

It is important to enter the PQE using the date the work occurred, not the date the PQE is being entered. This will result in proper calculations in other areas of CARS, such as Fuel Cost Adjustment. At a minimum, document the location and quantity of each pay item recorded on the PQE. When quantities are measured in the field, show measurements and all quantity calculations.

PQEs should be generated the same day by the inspector assigned to the respective pay item. Inspectors can enter PQEs in the field if they have internet access to CARS. If internet access is not available, enter PQEs as soon as practical. Summary sheets and diagrams prepared in the field can be scanned in and attached from the field. An iPad can be used to take a picture of a summary sheet or other document and attach it to a PQE (example). Some projects contain multiple funding sources. The multiple funding sources are identified in the detailed estimate and CARS as subprojects. If a project contains subprojects, only one bid item per subproject is documented on the PQE. For example, the project you are working on has two subprojects with quantities for Traffic Control Signs on each. The contractor places the construction signing resulting in quantities for traffic control signs in each subproject. This would be documented on two PQEs, one for each subproject.

Required Pay Quantity Signatures

Documentation of certain pay quantities requires obtaining the contractor's signature. They are:

- 1. Flagging
- 2. Pilot Car
- 3. Water
- 4. Excavation quantities documented by field measurements such as subcuts. Signatures are not needed for computer generated quantities such as a GPS surveyed subcuts.
- 5. Rock excavation not measured by cross sections.
- 6. Items measured in place such as foundation fill or select backfill, if using measurements greater than plan dimensions.
- 7. Any material paid for by load count.
- 8. Haul Summaries (109.01 J).

The purpose of obtaining the signature is to give the contractor an opportunity to review the measurements and signify agreement with the pay quantity documented.

PQEs in CARS

Pay Quantity Entries (PQEs) are used to manage payment of bid items. PQEs are displayed and managed in the Quantity Manager module. All PQEs must be Submitted before they will be paid on an Estimate.

PQEs are added to the Quantity Manager in the following ways:

- Contract Adjustment
- Mix Bitumen Report
- Concrete Paving Report
- Piling Report
- Add PQE button on Quantity Manager
 - Appendage feature on existing PQE

It is important to enter the PQE using the date the work occurred, not the date the PQE is being entered. This will result in proper calculations in other areas of CARS, such as Fuel Cost Adjustment.

Creating PQEs in Quantity Manager

To enter PQEs in Quantity Manager:

- 1. Click on the Quantity Manager link on the main menu. The Quantity Manager page is displayed.
 - a. Contract items are listed in ascending order by spec and code including change order items.
 - b. Contract adjustments are displayed separately at the end of the list.
- 2. Click on the Add PQE link by the Spec and Code to be entered.
- 3. Enter the information for the pay quantity
 - a. Enter the date the item was documented or installed.

- b. Use the dropdown box to enter the type of source document for the pay quantity.
 - i. No Additional Use when PQE is source document.
 - ii. Attached Use when source document is attached.
 - iii. Referenced Use when source document is referenced.
- c. If the quantity being entered is from a change order, use the Change Order dropdown to pick the change order information.
- d. The Contractor Approved radio buttons may be used for items such as water or flagging hours that require the contractor's signature. These buttons do not replace the signature requirement and should be used for tracking only.
- e. The Remarks text box is used to enter any comments about the pay item.
- f. Under locations, enter the quantity for the item documented and its location. One quantity and location text box is initially provided but more can be added by pressing the Add More Rows button.
- 4. Attach supporting documents
 - a. The source document and other supporting documents may be attached by clicking the Browse button and navigating to the location of the document.
 - b. Multiple files may be attached using the Add More Files button and repeating step 4a.
 - c. Use the file comments section to add information about the attachments.
- 5. Click the Save button. If additional PQEs will be entered for the item, click on the Save and Add New Button. This will save the information entered and bring up a blank page.

Editing PQEs

A PQE or appendage can be edited until it is paid on the progressive estimate or as long as the status is Not Checked, Checked, Rejected, Submitted, or Pending. To edit a pay quantity:

- 1. Click on the expand button next to the spec and code.
- 2. Click on the date of the entry to be edited.
- 3. Edit the information by changing the data or dropdown selections.
- 4. Files may be added or deleted.
- 5. Use the approval buttons to mark the entry as checked or submitted.
- 6. Click on the Save button to save the corrected entry.
- 7. The entire entry may be deleted using the delete button at the bottom of the page.

Checking PQEs

Each PQE should be checked before it is submitted to the estimate. The check should be performed by a user who is not the originator.

To check entries on Quantity Manger main page (available to users with the inspector role):

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and Status filter to Not Checked to display all PQEs that need checking.
- 2. Click on Expand All.
- 3. Review the displayed information for each PQE. Click on an attachment to display it.
- 4. Click the check box next to the PQE once it has been reviewed.
- 5. Click Check at the top of the page.

To check PQE from within the PQE (available to users assigned to project):

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and Status filter to Not Checked to display all PQEs that need checking.
- 2. Click on the date of the entry to be reviewed.

3. After reviewing the displayed information and attachments, click the Check radio button and hit save.

Submitting PQEs

Each pay quantity entry (PQE) must be submitted before it will be added to the estimate. Only the roles of Engineer and Alternate Engineer have the ability to submit.

To submit PQEs on Quantity Manager Page:

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and Status filter to Checked. This will display all checked pay entries.
- 2. Click on Expand All.
- 3. Review the displayed information for each PQE. Click on an attachment to display it.
- 4. Click the check box next to the PQE once it has been reviewed.
- 5. Click Submit at the top of the page.

To submit PQE from within the PQE:

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and Status filter to Checked. This will display all checked PQEs.
- 2. Click on the date of the entry to be submitted.
- 3. After reviewing the displayed information and attachments, click the Submit radio button and hit save.

Rejecting PQEs

At any time during the checking or submitting processes, the entry may be rejected. The Reject action changes the entry status to Rejected.

To reject a PQE on Quantity Manager Page:

- 1. Select the check box next to the PQE.
- 2. Click the Reject button at the top or bottom of the page.
- 3. Add comments to Rejection Reason.
- 4. Click Reject.
- 5. Reject Reason is automatically emailed to entry originator and status is changed to Not Checked.

To reject a PQE from within the PQE:

- 1. Click on the date to enter the PQE.
- 2. Click the Reject radio button next to Approval.
- 3. Click Save.
- 4. Add comments to Rejection Note.
- 5. Click OK.
- 6. Reject Reason is automatically emailed to entry originator and status is changed to Not Checked.

Appending PQEs

Occasionally, it may be necessary to correct or supplement a PQE that has been paid. This is done by adding an appendage to the original PQE in Quantity Manager.

To make an appendage:

1. Click on the date of the PQE.

- 2. Click Add Appendage at the bottom of the page.
- 3. Enter date the appendage is created.
- 4. Enter the difference in quantity if applicable. For example if the original quantity was 5 ft and the correct quantity is 4 FT, enter -1 FT in the appendage quantity.
- 5. Add location if it has changed.
- 6. Add remarks explaining why change was made.
 - a. Remarks are required for all appendages.
- 7. Use the browse button on the original entry to add additional files if necessary.
- 8. Click save. Status of the original entry will change to Not Checked.
- 9. Reject Reason is automatically emailed to entry originator and status is changed to rejected.

Attaching Documents to PQEs

Documents may be attached directly to the respective PQE as detailed <u>above</u>. Multiple documents can be attached at once. Additional documents may be attached until the project finaled.

Attached documents are automatically stored in CARS/FileNet. CARS indexes the Subject/title field based on the pay item spec and code and the attached file name. Attached files may be viewed by clicking on the attachment link in the PQE. Once confirmed the source document is stored in CARS/FileNet, it is not necessary to retain a hard copy as part of the project records.

Only the source document should be attached to the PQE in CARS.

Attaching Source Documents

The source document should be legible and accurate when attached.

Do not attach pictures or documents related to the inspection or testing of the item.

When attaching a source document, do not reference the hard copy of the document.

There is no need to repeat information from the source document in the remarks section of the PQE.

The following chart displays file types that may be attached.

File Type	Description	Max Size (MB)
docx	Microsoft Word Document	5
jpg	JPEG Graphic	3
jpeg	JPG Graphic	3
pdf	Portable Document Format	20
png	Graphic	5
html	Wep Page Source Text	2
xls	Excel Document	5
mov	Movie File	10
mp4	Windows Movie	10
txt	Text File	1
rtf	Rich Text Format	1
bmp	Bit Map Image	10
tif	Image	5
pptx	Power Point	10

Deleting Attached Documents in CARS

Attachments can only be deleted until the PQE is paid for. To delete attachments, follow the <u>Editing</u> <u>PQE</u> instructions and click Delete next to the unwanted file.

District Finals PQE Check

Each PQE should be checked by the district before the final is submitted to Construction Services. This check is performed in Quantity Manager. This check is available for all users assigned to the project.

For District Finals check on Quantity Manager main page:

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and District Finals filter to Not Completed to display all PQEs that need District Finals checking.
- 2. Click on Expand All.
- 3. Review the displayed information for each PQE. Click on an attachment to display it.
- 4. Click the check box next to the PQE once it has been reviewed.
- 5. Click District Finals button at the top of the page.

To check PQEs individually (available to users assigned to project):

- 1. Set Spec and Code filter to With Entries and District Finals filter to Not Completed to display all PQEs that need District Finals checking.
- Click on the date of the entry to be reviewed.
 After reviewing the displayed information and attachments, click the Approve radio button next to District Finals and click save.

MOBILIZATION

Automated Mobilization Payments in CARS

CARS automatically calculates payments due for mobilization and adds them to progressive estimates throughout the project. This change went into effect for all projects bid after January 1, 2022. Projects bid prior to this date must be calculated and paid manually.

The calculations are based upon Table 702-01 in the NDDOT Standard Specifications:

Table 702-01							
Original Contract	Payment wil	I be the Lesser of:					
Amount Earned	Mobilization	Original Contract					
Amount Earned	Bid Amount	Amount					
5%	25%	2.5%					
10%	50%	5.0%					
50%	100%	7.5%					
75%	100%	10.0%					

CARS counts all PQE's that have been submitted to progressive estimates, along with all previously approved progressive estimates, to determine the percentage of 'Original Contract Amount Earned'. PQE's that have been created, but not submitted to a progressive estimate, are excluded from the total.

Subprojects & Tied Projects

CARS calculates the mobilization payment at the Contract level (all tied projects together). The 'Original Contract Amount' is based on the total Contract amount shown in the Proposal. The 'Original Amount Contract Earned' includes work done on all tied projects.

When CARS calculates the mobilization payment for the Contract, it distributes the payment between the tied projects and subprojects based upon the portion of the Mobilization bid item that exists on each tied project and/or subproject.

Therefore, it is possible to have a mobilization payment due on a tied project or subproject even without work occurring yet on that project.

Mobilization in Excess of 10% of the Contract Amount

Payment for any amount bid for Mobilization in excess of 10% of the original Contract amount is not made until all work is completed (see Specification 702.06.) Therefore, this portion of the mobilization payment must be manually initiated by the Engineer using Quantity Manager:

- After all work is completed, enter the Quantity Manager and scroll down to 701- 100 Mobilization.
- Check the 'Pay Remaining Mobilization Bid Items' check box.

Add POE 🛛 😌 702 - 100 MOBILIZATION (1) Running: 0.009 Planned: 0.050 Price: 99,000.00 Unit: L SUM Pay Remaining Mobilization Bid Items: 🗆

• Click 'Submit' on the confirmation box. The remaining amount of Mobilization will be added to the next progressive estimate.

Clicking the "Pay Remaining Mobilization Bid Items" checkbox on one tied project will automatically check the boxes on all tied projects. The remaining mobilization will then be paid on the next progressive estimate on all tied projects. Therefore, wait until all work is done on the Contract before checking the "Pay Remaining Mobilization Bid Items" checkbox.

If the 'Pay Remaining Mobilization' checkbox is erroneously checked, it is possible to uncheck the boxes for all tied projects to prevent all remaining mobilization from being paid out. If the erroneous payment has already been included on a progressive estimate, it can be removed by recalling or rejecting the estimate, then unchecking the "Pay Remaining Mobilization' checkbox on each tied project.

An erroneous final mobilization payment can be removed from the estimate up until the point a progressive estimate (for any tied project) has been approved by the Construction or Maintenance Engineer. After a progressive estimate has been approved by the Construction or Maintenance Engineer, the "Pay Remaining Mobilization" checkbox is disabled & an erroneous final mobilization payment can only be corrected by the Help Desk role (NDIT).

If the Engineer forgets to manually pay the remaining Mobilization balance, it will automatically be added to the Final Estimate.

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES

Electronic signatures are acceptable for the following documents:

- <u>Required pay quantity signatures</u>
 - An electronic signature may be added to the field documentation and then uploaded into CARS. Form <u>SFN 10004</u> may be used to collect the signatures.
- Materials Certifications.
- State forms that do not alter the contract such as Statement of Daily Force Account Work, Road and Pit Release Statement and others.

Electronic signatures can be obtained in one of two ways on any document that has a signature block.

- 1. Typed name
 - a. Signee types their own name into the signature box.
- 2. Signature Software
 - a. Signee uses a software program such as Adobe Pro to add typed name, image of signature, or computer generated signature into signature box.

DOCUMENTATION GUIDELINES FOR SELECTED ITEMS

Contract Bond

Contract bond will be paid based on the receipted invoice submitted by the contractor along with a letter requesting payment. Attach the receipted invoice to the PQE. If the premium paid by the contractor is less than the original lump sum bid price, only the percentage represented by the invoice amount will be paid on intermediate and semi-final estimates. For example:

- The invoice amount submitted by the contractor is \$4,500.
- The original bid amount is \$5000.
- Pay for 0.90 LS

The remainder of the original lump sum bid price remains unpaid until the final estimate. If the invoice amount submitted by the contractor is equal to or more than the original lump sum bid price, only the bid price will be paid.

Railroad Insurance

Railroad Insurance is paid lump sum when the Contractor provides the Engineer with certified copies of the insurance policies and with the railroad company's approval of the policy in accordance with Section 107.13. Attach the railroad company's approval and the insurance policies to the PQE.

State Furnished Concrete Barrier

Submit SFN 60565 to Design Division when contractor takes and returns barrier.

Mobilization

Mobilization will be paid on the percentage of the original contract earned. The dollar amount paid will be the percentage of the mobilization bid price or the percentage of the original contract amount, whichever is less. Refer to Specification 702.06 for more information and payment table.

Aggregates

Aggregates are generally paid by the ton. Weigh tickets are produced and summarized on haul summaries produced by the contractor's scale. The signed haul summary should be attached to the corresponding PQE.

Aggregates are sometimes measured by the square yard or cubic yard and will be measured in place. All field measurements and calculations must be recorded on the PQE or kept in a field book.

Asphalt for Prime, Tack or Seal Coat

A field book or summary sheet will be kept to document distributor shots. Shot records are used to determine application rates and can be used as an estimated quantity. Actual final quantities paid will be based on manifest quantities. Final quantities are based on the undiluted gallons delivered minus any quantities used for other purposes such as waste or private use. The total quantity from manifests should be equal to or greater than the total quantity in the shot record.

Attach the manifest for the asphalt material to the PQE.

On some projects like those in an urban setting, quantities may be determined by shot record only as the contractor's equipment is serving multiple projects. A manifest for the asphalt material applied to the project must still be collected for testing purposes. When paying off the shot record, attach the shot record and manifest to the PQE along with an explanation as to why the shot record was used for payment.

Asphalt for Bituminous Mixes

Asphalt used in hot bituminous mixes is paid for by the ton. Daily estimated amounts are calculated in the Mix Bitumen Report tab, using the Cut-Off Report function, which is also used to determine the percentage of asphalt in the mix. Cut-Off Reports are calculated using the manifest tons. Final quantities are based on the tons delivered minus any quantities used for other purposes such as waste or private

use. If the Cut-Off Report application is used, a PQE is automatically created and will need to be checked and submitted on Quantity Manager.

Attach all manifests to the daily report or PQE.

Sometimes hot mix is supplied from a commercial plant that is serving many other customers. In this case, the quantity determined from the mix bitumen report will be used. Manifests covering the material used on the project must still be collected for testing purposes.

Reinforcing Steel

A record of all reinforcement bars placed in a structure is kept by the inspector present at the time of placement. These records are generally kept in a field book or summary sheet listing the number, size and length of each type of bar installed and separated by portion of the structure. Attach the summary sheet or reference the field book in the corresponding PQE in CARS.

Subgrade Preparation

Subgrade preparation will be measured by the number of miles or square yards prepared and accepted. Document field measurements and calculations on the PQE. Referencing a field book or diary entry or attaching a summary sheet with the corresponding calculations is also acceptable.

Water

Water may be measured in calibrated tanks, by weighing and converting to gallons, or by an approved metering device.

Spot check the loaded water truck to ensure compliance with legal load limits.

When water is measured in calibrated tanks, attach the calibration information to the pay quantity report. It is up to the Project Manager to determine the accuracy and acceptance of the calibration. Quantities are determined by a count of the loads hauled and placed multiplied by the "M" gallon (1000 gallon) calibrated capacity of the water hauling unit. Record each load on <u>SFN 61032</u>, Water Haul Sheet. The contractor will sign each Water Haul Sheet. Attach the signed Water Haul Sheet to the PQE.

Where water is measured and paid by weighing, The "M" gallons of the hauling units will be calculated by weighing the truck empty and full and converting to gallons at a rate of 8.33 pounds per gallon. The full weight must not exceed the licensed legal load for the hauling unit. Quantities are determined by a count of the loads hauled and placed multiplied by the "M" gallon capacity of the water hauling unit. The contractor will sign each days load counts along with the "M" gallon calculations for each hauling unit. The quantities must be signed by the contractor. Attach the signed summary sheet to the PQE.

Where water is measured by meter, attach a certified statement that the device conforms to AWWA requirements to the PQE. Calibration must have been performed within one year. The Engineer should observe and record the meter before and after each period of water use or weekly at a minimum, taking care to ensure that each period of water use was used solely for the project. A summary should be prepared by the Engineer and signed by the Contractor. Attach the signed summary to the PQE.

Excavation and Borrow

Excavation and borrow quantities may be recorded as estimated amounts until actual computations are made. Excavation and borrow quantities are determined by cross sections. If common excavation areas include topsoil, the topsoil quantity must be subtracted from the common excavation quantity and paid separately. The field notes can be plotted, and computed, or may be determined by using a computer earthwork program. Hand plotted cross sections and earthwork computations should be checked in depth at the District level. Earthwork computations will be submitted along with the field notes with the final records. Earthwork computations calculated using Geopak will also be submitted with final records. Attach earthwork calculations to the PQE. An example of source document for small quantity excavation can be found <u>here</u>.

Roadway Obliteration

Locations and field measured quantities for obliteration will be recorded on the PQE. Show any calculations for the quantities.

Loose Rock Riprap

Riprap quantities are generally paid by the cubic yard and are determined by load counts or are measured in place. For load counts, determine the cubic yard capacity of the hauling unit. The cubic yard capacity of the truck should not exceed the licensed legal load. Document the calculations used to determine the hauling capacity and have the Contractor sign them. Attach the signed calculations to the first PQE. Record the load counts on a summary sheet or in a field book. The contractor should also sign each day's load counts before they are attached the PQE.

If the riprap is paid by the cubic yard in place, measure the length and width of the area. Take random depth checks along the placement area to determine an average depth. Show all measurements and calculations on the PQE.

If the Riprap is paid by the ton, tickets and haul summaries should be provided by the contractor.

Flagging and Pilot Car

Documentation must include name of flagger/driver and hours worked. Do not use contractor payroll as source for hours. Record hours worked for each flagger and pilot car on <u>SFN 61031</u>, Flagging and Pilot Car Summary. Attach the Contractor signed summary sheet to the PQE.

There also must be certification on file from the contractor verifying the flaggers are trained personnel.

Seeding and Sodding

These items will be paid by actual field measurements of the placement areas. Seeding may be measured using <u>SFN 16474</u>, Seeding Quantity Sheet, or by surveying the area. Show all measurements and calculations on the PQE or attach a summary of the measurements (<u>example</u>). Allow the Contractor to review quantities before processing payment.

Measuring of areas not seeded/sodded and deducting this from plan quantity does not substantiate the plan quantity amount and is not sufficient.

Pipe

Payment of pipe will be the actual field measurements of pipe placed. Documentation of pipe shall be made by the inspector at the time of installation. Record all necessary information including date, length, diameter, class, station, and heat numbers in the PQE.

Permanent Pavement Marking

When plan quantity of either water based or epoxy paint is 30,000 linear feet or greater, collect a daily DLS report in accordance with 762.04 C.1.b and attach it to PQE.

Non-Structural Concrete

Concrete construction will generally be paid for by the linear foot or square yard. These items will be field measured and drawings will be attached to the PQE or referenced in a field book. Computations must be shown for all quantities.

Concrete paving quantities may also be determined by using the Concrete Paving Report.

Structural Concrete

All concrete pours will be recorded. The total yards used in each portion of the structure will be recorded in the inspector's diary or a separate field book. Tickets will be produced at the concrete plant and will be kept in the District until final payment it made. The pay quantity for each portion of the structure will be plan quantity unless it is determined that the plans are in error or a change in design has been made.

Manholes, Catch Basins, and Inlets

Documentation is required on the PQEs showing stations and date installed of each item.

Temporary Signing

Documentation should include the location of the device and date placed as well as the sign number and units. Show all calculations for total units to be paid. Project Managers should ensure that each sign is only paid for once, regardless of the number of moves. If a sign summary sheet is used, attach it to the PQE. This information should be made available to the Contractor.

Posts

Actual lengths and weights per foot of post, plus the extension should be documented.

Miscellaneous Items

Items should be documented showing the location and amount being paid. If an additional quantity of an item was added and was not shown on the plans, it should also be noted on the PQE. Lump sum quantities will be paid as a percentage of the work complete and the PQE should include documentation supporting the amount of the lump sum work completed.

METHODS OF MEASUREMENTS

Weighed Materials

The contractor is required to submit tickets and haul summaries for all weighed materials in accordance with Section 109. CARS should no longer be used for generating haul summaries for payment.

The results of the scale tests should be documented in the project or inspection diary or attached to the PQE.

In the case of small tonnages as determined by the Engineer, payment may be recorded on a PQE with the weigh tickets attached.

Tickets

The contractor should produce tickets in accordance with 109.01 J.6.b.

Two copies of the tickets will be made. The contractor keeps the original copy. The duplicate copy of each ticket is given to the truck driver and collected by the inspector on the roadway. This ensures that the loads weighed are being used on the project. As the tickets are collected on the roadway, the inspector will initial each one and keep the tickets separated in groups by use such as mainline, shoulders, approaches, etc. The inspector also writes the location of each different placement area on each group of tickets. Sometimes, only a partial load will be used on the project and the rest of the load will be considered waste. The inspector will write the tons actually used on the ticket and initial it. At the end of the day, the inspector records the following information:

- 1. Beginning and ending ticket numbers
- 2. Locations material was placed and the total tons for each area
- 3. Any missing ticket numbers
- 4. Any partial or whole loads not used and considered waste

The inspection report and the tickets are used when checking and certifying the daily haul summary.

The requirement that an inspector personally receive all load tickets at the time of Delivery may be relaxed only in cases of very small quantities or intermittent deliveries under conditions where the project engineer or inspector can visually determine the approximate quantity delivered.

Truck Platform Scale Use

Each truck to be weighed shall be tared daily in accordance with 109.01 J.3.a. No truck may be used for hauling material paid for on a weight basis until tared.

Contractor Produced Daily Haul Summaries

Computerized weighing systems not only weigh the load and produce a weigh ticket but are also required to produce a daily haul summary. The contractor produced daily haul summary must include the information in Section 109.01 J.6.c of the Standard Specifications. The haul summary must be signed by the Contractor & Subcontractor or Supplier (if applicable) prior to submittal to the Engineer (109.01 J.6.c.(11).

Check the tickets turned in by the inspector against the contractor produced haul summary. The beginning and ending ticket numbers should correspond with the tickets turned in by the inspector as

should the total tons hauled. The total and running total on the contractor's haul summary may be adjusted for voided tickets or partial loads used.

If any corrections to the haul summary are necessary, inform the contractor and have them re-submit a corrected haul summary.

After the contractor's haul summary is verified, the individual who has verified the contractor's haul summary shall sign the haul summary in the blank for Engineer's signature to approve it.

Signed contractor haul summaries are the source document and should be attached to the PQE in CARS. Once the haul summary has been prepared in accordance with Section 109.01 J.6 and uploaded into CARS, the tickets may be disposed of at the discretion of the Engineer.

Load Counted Material (Volume Measurement)

Volume measurement is used to determine pay quantities because of the type of material or because only a small quantity is being used. Volume measurements are typically used for items such as foundation fill, riprap, and water. Volume measurement can be calculated by load counts or by in-place measurement.

Measured In Place

After the material is placed, measure the length, width and depth of the placement area. Take several depth measurements throughout the area to establish an average depth of the material. Calculate the cubic yards.

Load Counts

Determine which trucks the contractor will use to haul the material. Measure width, length and depth of the truck box and compute the cubic yards. The volume used for each truck's load should be agreed to by the contractor and should not exceed the legal load limits for the hauling unit. Record the truck number and the calculations in the inspector's diary, a load count field book or on a pay item report. This information is necessary to check the quantities when the project is finaled.

Record the number of loads each truck hauls and places on the project. Calculate the quantity by multiplying the number of loads by the cubic yard measurement for each truck. These load counts can be kept in a field book or be recorded directly on a pay item report. The contractor must sign the field book or PQE for each day's load counts.

If a field book is used to document the load counts, note this when entering these types of pay items into CARS.

STOCKPILES AND INVOICED ITEMS

Section 109.05 of the Standard Specifications allows the Department to make payment for material on hand that meets certain conditions. Payment is based on written request from the contractor that must include, among other items, an invoice for purchased materials or statement of production costs for contractor produced materials. An example of the contractor's breakdown of material costs is included at the end of this <u>section</u>.

- The contractor's written request and invoice/production costs should be entered into Filenet.
- For materials not produced by the contractor, include the paid invoice and signed statement acknowledging receipt of payment from the supplier/fabricator in the project file.

The general idea behind paying for material on hand is that a bid item's unit price is made up of the material cost and the cost of incorporating the material into the work. For example, an aggregate CL5 bid item includes the price of the aggregate and the price of hauling, placing, and compacting the aggregate into the finished product. Payment for material on hand is a way to pay the contractor for the material portion of a bid item when the material is obtained for the project. The NDDOT recoups the payment as the material is incorporated into the project.

The Engineer uses the CARS Stockpiles module to set up payment for the material on hand.

Enter Stockpile/Invoiced Items in CARS

To enter stockpile or invoiced items into CARS:

- 1. Click on the Stockpiles link on the main menu. The Stockpile spec and code Selection page is displayed.
- 2. Click on the Add link for the material or items to be stockpiled. The Stockpile/Invoiced Item Maintenance page is displayed.
 - a. Enter the date
 - b. Click in the radio button to choose between stockpile or invoiced.
 - c. If the item to be stockpiled is material added by change order, be sure the change order material is chosen in the Change Order dropdown box.
 - d. Enter the quantity
 - i. This is the quantity over which the payment will be "spread"
 - e. Enter the price
 - i. This will be a portion of the contract unit price. *Example calculation shown below.*
 - f. Remarks can be entered in the text box provided. These will be displayed in the quantity book.
- 3. Click on Save.

The material on hand portion of the unit price is spread over the quantity of the bid item for which the material will be used.

Example: 50,000 SY of 10" Non-Reinforced Concrete pavement is planned on a project. The contract unit price is \$75.00/SY, so the total dollar amount for this bid item is \$3,750,000. The contractor submits a written request for payment of material on hand for all dowel bars which will be used in the pavement. The itemized cost breakdown shows the value of the material (the dowel bars) is \$200,000. Specification 109.05 is followed, and the Engineer determines that the dowel bars are eligible for payment for material on hand.

The Engineer must now calculate the portion of the contract unit price which is comprised of the stockpiled material. In the example above, the value of the material is \$200,000 and the quantity for which the dowel bars will be used is 50,000 SY. Therefore: \$200,000/50,000 SY= \$4/SY. In

other words, the stockpiled dowel bars make up \$4/SY of the \$75/SY contract unit price. The numbers are entered into the Stockpile module as shown below:

Date:	06/06/2019 🚰 (mm/dd/yyyy)
Type:	Stockpile Invoiced
Change Order:	NONE V
Quantity:	50000
Price:	4
Remarks:	
	0

As a result of this entry, the Contractor will be paid \$200,000 (50,000 SY x \$4/SY) on the next progressive estimate. It will show up at the bottom of the progressive estimate in a section called Stockpiled and Invoiced Items.

Stockpile payments are automatically depleted as PQE's for the corresponding spec and code are entered in Quantity Manager and submitted to progressive estimates.

To put this in terms of the example shown above, if the contractor begins paving and a PQE is entered for 1,000 SY of this concrete bid item, then -1,000 SY (-\$4,000) will automatically appear for the bid item in the Stockpiled and Invoiced Items section on the next Progressive Estimate. This is what is known as depleting the stockpile quantity. The NDDOT paid for the material portion of the bid item upfront and now it's being automatically recouped as the work is completed.

Important!

It is possible a portion of the pre-paid stockpile quantity will remain after the work is completed. This will happen if the Payment for Material on Hand (Stockpile) was spread over the entire planned quantity, but the actual quantity underruns. <u>All remaining Stockpile payments must be depleted prior to the final estimate.</u>

Deplete Stockpile/Invoiced Items in CARS

If there is any stockpile quantity remaining when the work for the contract item is completed, it can be depleted by:

- 1. From the Main Menu, click on the Stockpiles link. The Stockpiles page is displayed.
- 2. Find the spec and code for the item to delete and click on the Maint link. The Stockpile/Invoiced Item Selection page is displayed.
- 3. Click on the date link for the stockpile/invoiced item. The Stockpile/Invoiced Item Maintenance page is displayed.
- 4. Click in the check box by Deplete Quantity.
- 5. Click on Save. This will deplete any remaining stockpile or invoiced quantity.

Multiple Stockpiles

It is possible to create multiple stockpile entries for the same bid item. This can happen if the contractor requests payment for a portion of the plan quantity, then later requests another portion. Example: The contractor stockpiles half the plan quantity of aggregate, then later crushes another quarter. Later, they finish the final quarter.

These entries are created in CARS Stockpiles as described above. The difference, is in this case, is the material on hand portion of the unit price is spread over the quantity of material contained in the stockpile. (In the previous example, the material price was spread over the entire plan quantity.)

Stockpile entries can be created multiple times for a bid item until the plan quantity of that material has been reached.

CARS will deplete the stockpiles in chronological order based on when the stockpile was created. In the example shown below, CARS will deplete the 6/7/2019 stockpile, then 6/10/2019, then 6/11/2019 as the material is incorporated into the project.

onscruction rinten	nated Records Si	ystem			
Project: IM-2-094(146)275					
SubProject: 1 - GRADING, SALV	AGED BASE COURSE, DOV	VELED PCC PAVEMEN			
tockpile/Invoiced Item	Selection «				
02 100 SALVAGED BASE O	OURSE				
	92.000 Price: 5.900				
Date	Туре	Quantity	Remaining Quantity	Price	Release Flag
06/11/2019	S	32,000.000	32,000.000	1.00	E
	S	64,000.000	64,000.000	1.00	E
06/10/2019					R

Again, remember to deplete any remaining stockpile quantities prior to the final estimate.

ITEMS DOCUMENTED IN CARS REPORTS

Fuel Cost Adjustment

All Fuel Cost Adjustments should be performed using the CARS Fuel Cost Adjustment Module. If a project has one or more adjustments processed and posted to CARS manually, the Fuel Cost Adjustment Module will not be available for that project. The Fuel Cost Adjustment Module calculations are based on the PQE date entered. For this reason, it is critical that each PQE be dated in the month the work was performed. The Fuel Index values will be automatically displayed for each project and will be maintained by Construction Services.

To use the Fuel Cost Adjustment Module:

- 1. Click on Fuel Cost Adjustment on main page.
- 2. Click Maintain Contractor Affidavit Costs
 - a. Enter the fuel affidavit costs as found in the contract.
 - b. Click Save.
- 3. Click recalculate.
 - a. The adjustments will automatically be calculated based on PQEs in the submitted, pending, or paid status.
- 4. The Fuel Cost Adjustment Totals will be displayed. The Pending PQE row will only populate if there is an outstanding payment to be made.
- After reviewing the calculated Fuel Cost Adjustments, click POST PQEs if a payment is desired.
 a. The respective PQEs will be created in Quantity Manager in the submitted status.
- 6. Each time changes are made in Quantity Manager, they will not reflect in the Fuel Cost Adjustment Module until the Recalculate button has been clicked. Recalculate triggers a new calculation for every month and every PQE. For example, if a PQE is added in August, but dated in May, it will automatically be included in the calculations for May.

Exclusion List

The Exclusion List button displays all spec and codes that will be excluded from the Fuel Cost Adjustment calculations in accordance with the special provision. This list may be viewed and edited by clicking on the button and clicking Add or View. This list should be reviewed to ensure that all contract adjustments are listed as excluded.

HBP List

The HBP List button displays all spec and codes that will be included in the HBP calculations in accordance with the special provision. This list may be viewed and edited by clicking on the button and clicking Add or View.

Liquidated Damage Exclusions

Fuel Adjustments should not be made when the contractor is working under liquidated damages after the expiration of contract time. To ensure that the adjustment excludes such dates they need to be entered by clicking on the Liquidated Damage Exclusions button, clicking Add, and entering the dates for the window of the work.

Reports

The reports button displays several reports that are available to ensure that the calculations have been made correctly. These reports may be emailed to the contractor upon request.

- Fuel Cost Adjustment Report Displays the monthly adjustments.
- Excluded Items Report Displays each PQE that was excluded from the calculations because the respective spec and code was on the Exclusion List.
- Included Items Report Displays each PQE that was included in the calculations for the Unleaded and Diesel Fuel Cost Adjustments.
- HBP Items Displays all PQEs that were included in the calculations for the Burner Fuel Cost Adjustment.
- Liquidated Damage (LD) Exclusions Displays each PQE that was excluded from the calculations because it fell in the LD Exclusion date range.

Piling/Test Piling

Piling reports are used to record pile driving data, calculate bearing values and document pay lengths for both test pile and foundation piling. Section 622 of the Standard Specifications contains complete information for the inspection of piling and test piling.

Before piling or test piling information is entered in CARS, you will enter the bridge number and station for each structure on the project. Next, you will enter the hammer information for each driving unit used on the project. This information is obtained from the manufacturer's specification sheet submitted by the contractor.

The following is a list of some common terminology used in piling/test piling documentation and calculation:

- Rated Energy This is the manufacturer's rated energy in foot/lbs. Some reductions may apply and are listed in the Standard Specifications.
- Weight of Striking Parts This refers to the ram weight in pounds. This weight is used in the bearing calculations.
- Rated Stroke This is the manufacturer's rated stroke of the hammer in feet.

- Rated Speed This is the manufacturer's rated speed in blows per minute.
- Average Observed Speed The observed speed in blows per minute from the inspector's documentation.
- Type of Cap/Cushion –Refers to the type of material used for these parts of the hammer.
- Cap Weight The weight of the cap in pounds from the hammer manufacturer's specifications. This weight is used in the bearing calculations.
- Anvil Weight The weight of the anvil in pounds from the manufacturer's specifications. This weight is used in the bearing calculations.
- Adapter Weight The weight of the adapter in pounds from the manufacturer's specifications. This weight is used in the bearing calculations.
- Hammer Stroke This is the stroke in feet from the field documentation or the manufacturer's rating.
- Blows per Minute Refers to the observed blows per minute recorded in the field documentation by the inspector
- Energy This is the observed energy from field documentation and is recorded in foot/pounds.
- Number of Blows The number of blows counted as final penetration is being taken for bearing.
- Inches Penetration Full penetration of the pile during the final check. Recorded to the nearest hundredth of an inch.

The 'M' value in the pile formula is the combined weight of the pile, the driving head and the hammer anvil.

Information for design load, plan length of test pile and pile type is found in the project plans. The weight per foot of steel piling is found in the size designation for the piling. For example, the bid item Steel Piling HP 14 x 73 indicates that the piling weighs 73 pounds per linear foot. The weight of the piling is also used in the bearing calculations.

Test Piling

A Test Pile Log is completed for each test pile driven for the structure. The plans will show the test pile number, location and minimum required bearing. Information needed to compute the bearing for the test pile is recorded in a field book by the inspector or directly in the Piling module.

Bearing values are computed according to the applicable formula found in the Standard Specifications. 'Obs. Stoke' applies to single acting hammers and 'Feet of Drop' applies to gravity type hammers. The value for "M" in the piling formula is the combined weight of the pile, driving head and hammer anvil (lbs.) and represents the total weight of the 'driven' parts.

When computing the average penetration, before obtaining 50% of the design load, it is not necessary to count the total number of blows between each 5 feet of penetration, but rather count the number of blows required to penetrate the last foot of penetration.

When 50% of the design load is obtained, bearing must be computed for every foot of penetration even if the bearing drops below 50% of the design load. This is the distance below the bottom of the footing where 50% of the design load is first obtained and bearing readings begin. This distance is used to compute bearing for each foot for the test pile report. Use special attention to insure the accuracy of this entry.

The inspector records the following information in the field documentation for test piling:

- 1. The substructure unit and number i.e. pier or abutment number
- 2. Piling number
- 3. Date, start and stop time
- 4. The reading starting point
- 5. The number of piling and cutoff, if any, for each pile length
- 6. Penetration data including stroke, energy, blows, penetration in inches and the pile length number for that reading

Data recorded in the field inspector's log for test piling is entered into CARS. The bearing calculations are made and the test piling pay quantity is sent to the Quantity Manager when it must be checked and submitted. Only the plan length for test piling as entered on the Test Piling Maintenance page will be sent to the quantity book. Any test piling driven in excess of the plan length will be paid at the contract unit prices for piling. Document the excess quantity on a PQE.

Piling

A log of pile driving is completed for all abutment and pier piling. The project plans show details of piling locations, numbers for each substructure unit, pile type and design loads.

The inspector records the following information for each piling driven:

- 1. The substructure unit and piling number
- 2. Hammer stroke
- 3. Blows per minute
- 4. Energy in foot/lbs
- 5. Number of blows
- 6. Each pile length installed and any footage cut off of the pile length
- 7. Final Add On. When piling has been driven to the required penetration and bearing, there may not be sufficient length of piling to extend into the footing. A length of piling is welded on and shown as the final add on quantity. This length of piling is part of the pay length but is not used in the bearing calculations.

This data may be entered directly into CARS in the Piling Maintenance section. The average penetration and bearing will be calculated. The pay length of piling driven will also be calculated and sent to the quantity book.

Before entering any piling or test piling data, you will need to enter the structure and hammer data. From the Main Menu, click on the Piling/Test Piling link. A list of the types or piling and test piling for the project will be displayed. Below the list are buttons for Structure and Hammer.

Enter Pile/Test Pile Information in CARS

To enter structure information:

- 1. Click on the Structure button. The Structure Maintenance page is displayed.
- Make sure the correct subproject is shown at the top of the page and click on the Add button. Enter the bridge number and station in the text boxes provided. If there is more than one structure, click on the Add button. Click on the Save button. This information will appear in the Structure dropdown list in the Piling and Test Piling pages.

3. To delete a structure in the list, click the check box in the Delete column by the structure information to be deleted and click on the Save button. The information is deleted and will no longer appear in the structure dropdown list in the Piling and Test Piling pages.

Make sure the correct subproject is shown when entering the structure information.

Enter Hammer Information in CARS

To enter hammer information:

- 1. Click on the Hammer button
- 2. Click on the Add button. The Hammer Maintenance page is displayed.
- 3. Enter information for the cap, cushion and hammer type using the choices provided in the dropdown boxes.
- 4. Enter the remaining hammer information in the text boxes shown and click on the Save button. This information will appear in the Hammer dropdown list in the Piling and Test Piling pages.

Enter Test Piling Information in CARS

For test piling:

- 1. Click on the Add link by the test piling spec and code.
- 2. Pick the structure location from the choices in the dropdown box.
- 3. Enter the pier or abutment number, the pile number, date and start and stop time in the text boxes.
- 4. Pick the hammer being used from the choices in the dropdown box.
- 5. Enter the pile weight, design load, plan length and the start point reading in the text boxes. A text box is also provided for remarks if there would be any special comments to make.
- 6. Enter the Pile Length information and Penetration Data. To add additional rows, type the number of readings in the text box and click on the Add Penetration Row button.
- 7. When all the test pile information has been entered, click on the Save button or the Save and Run Report button.

Enter Piling Information in CARS

For piling reports:

- 1. Click on the Add link by the piling spec and code.
- 2. Pick the structure location from the choices in the dropdown box.
- 3. Enter the pier or abutment number, the pile number and date in the text boxes.
- 4. Pick the hammer being used from the choices in the dropdown box.
- 5. Enter the piling weight, required penetration and required bearing.
- 6. Enter the pile length added after bearing was reached, if any.
- 7. Enter the hammer stroke, blows/minute, energy, number of blows and penetration in inches.
- 8. Use Browse button to add attachments if applicable.
- 9. Enter the pile lengths driven and any cutoff footage. If more than four length and cutoff entries are needed, click on the Add Pile Row button.
- 10. Click on either the Save or Save and Add New button if there are more piling to enter for that part of the structure.

Clicking on the Save and Add New button will bring up the same information as the first piling entered except that the piling number and pile lengths text boxes will be blank. When the information for all piling for that report is entered, click on either the Save or Save and Run Report button. The Piling

Record Selection Page will display each piling separately but will produce the report based on the date driven and the pier/abutment number. For example, if you have driven piles 1, 2 and 3 for abutment #1 and pile 1 for pier #2 on the same day, separate reports will be made for abutment #1 and pier #2.

Edit or Delete Pile Information:

- 1. Click on the Maint link by the test piling or piling spec and code.
- 2. Click on the bridge number by the date of test piling or piling report to edit.
- 3. Enter corrected information in any of the text boxes.
- 4. An entire row of penetration data can be deleted by clicking in the check box in the delete column for that row. In the piling report, only the last row of pile length can be deleted at one time.
- 5. The entire test piling or piling report can be deleted by clicking on the Delete button on the Test Piling or Piling Maintenance page.

Payment for test piling and piling is usually made at the contract unit prices for lengths of piling installed. Sometimes, adjustments to the payments for piling are made for circumstances such as underruns/overruns or piling splices. Refer to Section 622.06 Basis of Payment of the Standard Specifications for details of these types of payments.

Contact Bridge Division to review pile reports in CARS as soon as possible.

Mix Bitumen Reports

The mix bitumen report is used to calculate the estimated pay quantity of oil for a day's hot bituminous paving and to establish the percentage of oil in the mix.

When paving begins, some bituminous material may already be stored in the tanks supplying oil to the hot mix plant. This quantity is measured and recorded for the first mix bitumen report on a project. On subsequent days of paving, the bitumen in storage at the beginning of the day's paving is usually the quantity recorded as left in storage from the previous day. Sometimes, there is a break in paving from a particular plant to work on other projects. In these cases, the oil tanks supplying the hot mix plant will have to be re-measured. When the hot mix is being supplied from a commercial operation, it may be necessary to measure the tanks at the beginning of each day of paving. Commercial operations supply mix to many customers so the oil tank quantities are measured for those hours when mix is supplied to your project.

Any oil delivered by transport and used in the day's paving is also recorded on the mix bitumen report. The manifests for each load of oil delivered are collected and become a part of the project records.

The oil tanks are measured again at the end of a day's paving to record and calculate the quantity of oil left in storage.

The bitumen in storage at the beginning and end of each report are calculated by correcting the volume for temperature, multiplying by the specific gravity and dividing by 2,000 to obtain the quantity in tons. The bitumen delivered is recorded in pounds and converted to tons. The amount of bitumen used for a day's paving is calculated by adding the bitumen in storage and bitumen delivered then subtracting the bitumen left in storage. If any bitumen was used for purposes other than paving such as tack or fog coat, the gallons used are converted to tons and are also subtracted. The result is then divided by the total

tons produced from the plant for the day's paving to obtain the percent of oil in the mix. The oil quantity for mix produced but not used on the project (waste, private use, etc.) is multiplied by the oil percentage and those tons are subtracted from the quantity of bitumen for all mix produced. This result is the estimated pay quantity for the bitumen used on the project.

When this information is entered in the Mix Bitumen portion of CARS and saved, it will send the estimated pay quantity to the quantity book.

When paving is complete on the project, you will make an oil summary to check the quantity. An oil summary lists all bitumen delivered to the project from the manifests. Add the quantity for oil in storage at the beginning of the project. Oil quantities from non-project mix (waste, private use, etc.) along with any material left in storage when paving is complete is subtracted. The result of these computations is the total oil quantity for the project.

Enter Mix Bitumen Information in CARS To make a Mix Bitumen Report is CARS:

- 1. Make sure the Project and Subproject are correct.
- 2. Click on the Mix Bitumen link. The Mix Bitumen page is displayed.
- 3. Select the type of oil for the report by clicking on the Add link. Goes to the Mix Bitumen Maintenance page.
- 4. Enter the information for fields in the Mix Bitumen report:
 - a. Date, begin and end time.
 - b. The change order dropdown box will have a default of 'None' if no change orders apply to the material hauled. If the material is affected by a change order, the change order number, date of the change order, quantity and unit price will be display in the change order dropdown box. This can be left in the dropdown or the 'None" option can be chosen.
 - c. Enter the haul sheet or pay quantity tonnage for that day's paving.
 - d. Add the specific gravity from the oil manifest.
 - e. Enter the waste amount in gallons for any oil used for purposes other than in the hot bituminous pavement.
 - f. Enter any waste tonnage. This includes plant waste, road waste, private use, tons of pavement going to another project or any other pavement quantities that were not placed on the project.
 - g. Enter any remarks. This can include information about plant shut downs during the day or the types and tonnages of waste.
 - h. Enter the bitumen in storage. The beginning and ending gallons and beginning and ending temperatures for each tank are entered on one line. If you would need to enter more tanks than the four lines provide for click on the Add Storage Row button. Also, the ending storage and temperature readings from the previous day's report will automatically be filled in. If there has been a break in the paving on the project, that quantity and temperature can be changed by clicking in the text box and typing the new numbers.
 - i. Enter the bitumen delivered. Enter the manifest number and the net weight in pounds for each load of oil delivered. A remarks line is also provided if needed. To add more lines for loads delivered, click on the Add Delivered Row.
 - j. Attach manifests from loads delivered using the browse button
- 5. Click on the Save or the Save and Run Report button.
- 6. A PQE is created and must be checked and submitted on Quantity Manager.

Data entered in the mix bitumen report can be edited or the entire report can be deleted as long as the PQE has not been paid. After the oil quantity has been paid on a progressive estimate, the report can only be viewed and/or printed.

To edit or delete a mix bitumen report:

- 1. Click on the Mix Bitumen link. The page listing the types of material is displayed.
- 2. Click on the Maint link by the material used. The Mix Bitumen Record selection page is displayed where all reports for that item are listed in ascending date order.
- 3. Click on the date link for the mix bitumen report to edit or delete.
 - a. To edit the report, change any incorrect data and click on the Save or the Save and Run report button.
 - b. To delete the report, click on the delete button at the bottom of the page. A dialog box that confirms if the report should be deleted appears. If it should be deleted, click OK.

Concrete Paving

The concrete paving report is used to record and calculate concrete design and paving information. It also calculates the square yards paved and sends it to the quantity book.

Enter Concrete Paving Information in CARS

To make a concrete paving report in CARS:

- 1. Click on Concrete Paving link. The page listing the types of concrete pavement on the project is displayed.
- 2. Select the type of pavement by clicking on the Add link. The page to enter data for the paving report is displayed.
- 3. Enter the mix design data, any additional square yards paved and any remarks.
- 4. Enter the start and end time, start and end stations and any minutes of delay.
 - a. The linear distance will be computed automatically from the numbers entered in the start and end stations. Remember to enter the stations as a whole numbers without the plus, for example; 14+00 would be entered as 1400, 8+56.82 would be entered as 856.82. If there is an equation within the area paved, you will make two entries for the linear distance computations. Enter the start station for that day's paving and enter the back station for the end station. Make a second entry with the ahead station for the start stationing and then enter the end station for that day's paving.
 - b. If additional paving stations are required, click on the Add Blank Station Row button.c. Use the Browse button to attach files as necessary.
- 5. Save the data by clicking on either the Save or Save and Run Report button.
 - a. Clicking on the Save button, saves your data. A report can be generated later.
 - b. Clicking on the Save and Run Report button, creates a PQE that must be checked and submitted in Quantity Manager.

The concrete paving report includes a text box where additional square yards paved can be added. This is for small areas placed without the paving machine but included in the plant quantities produced for that day's paving. These quantities are field measured and the square yards calculated. These measurements and calculations could be recorded in the remarks section if space allows. If not, record the measurements and calculations and attach them to the paving report.

A copy of the paving report should be given to the contractor.

View/Print Concrete Paving Report:

- 1. Click on the Concrete Paving link. The page listing the types of concrete pavement on the project is displayed.
- 2. Click on the Maint link by the type of concrete pavement. The Concrete Paving Record selection page is displayed where all reports for that item are listed in ascending date order.
- 3. Click on the Report link for the concrete paving report to be viewed and/or printed. The report is generated.

Data entered in the concrete paving report can be edited or the entire paving report can be deleted as long as it has not been paid. After the concrete quantity has been paid on a progressive estimate, the report can only be viewed and/or printed.

To edit or delete a concrete paving report:

- 1. Click on the Concrete Paving link. The page listing the types of concrete pavement is displayed.
- 2. Click on the Maint link by the type of concrete pavement. The Concrete Paving Record selection page is displayed where all reports for that item are listed in ascending date order.
- 3. Click on the date link for the concrete paving report to edit or delete.
 - a. To edit the report, change any incorrect data and click on the Save button.
 - b. To delete the report, click on the delete button at the bottom of the page. A dialog box appears to confirm if the report should be deleted. If it should be deleted, click OK.

CERTIFICATION OF MATERIALS

Certification of Materials Forms (CoC's)

Material certifications are received on <u>SFN 61040</u>, Contractor Certificate of Compliance and <u>SFN 61041</u>, Manufacture Certificate of Compliance. The documents are sometimes referred to as CoC's. These forms represent the complete material certification and no additional information is needed unless specified elsewhere in the contract documents (such as mill reports for Buy America materials). The forms are prepared by the prime contractor. <u>The prime contractor must sign all certifications</u>, certifying that that materials they are providing meet the contract requirements.

How to fill out certification forms:

SFN 61040, Contractor Certificate of Compliance

- Spec/Code/Name/Description/Unit/Quantity
 - This information corresponds to the bid item for the materials being certified.
- o Material Certified
 - List the types of materials being certified.
- Factory Identification
 - At a minimum, this must contain the manufacturer and product name. It should also contain additional identifiable information, if possible. This includes information such as lot #, heat number #, etc.
 - It is not acceptable to leave this blank
 - o It is not acceptable to state "available upon request"
 - It is not acceptable to state "N/A"
- First Signature Block
 - This signature block is only required if the Prime Contractor desires its use.

- Second Signature Block
 - o <u>All certifications must be signed by a representative of the Prime Contractor</u>
- SFN 61041, Manufacture Certificate of Compliance
 - Spec/Code/Name/Description/Unit/Quantity
 - This information corresponds to the bid item for the materials being certified.
 - Material Certified
 - List the types of materials being certified.
 - Factory Identification
 - This must contain traceable identification information such as the lot # or heat #.
 - Place of Manufacture
 - Place of manufacture of material.
 - First Signature Block
 - Manufacture signature is required.
 - Second Signature Block
 - Prime contractor signature is required.

Additional Guidance

- 1. Do not upload the CoC into the CARS Certification Manager until all necessary information has been received.
- 2. Multiple CoC's may be necessary for one bid item due to partial deliveries of products.
 - <u>Example:</u> A shipment of a material (such as dowel bars) arrives at the beginning of the project. That material is identified by specific lot numbers. Halfway through the project, a new shipment arrives of the remaining quantity of that material. The prime contractor must submit a new certification for the new material with updated identification.
 - Multiple deliveries of product can be covered by one CoC if all material is the same product, from the same source, with the same manufacturing process.
- 3. Contractors who buy their materials in bulk from more than one supplier or manufacturer should list all the manufacturers and suppliers on the CoC form that stocked their yard with materials that have any potential of being used on a federal-aid project.
 - <u>Example</u>: Traffic control devices such as tubes or delineator drums. See example on following page.

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE EXAMPLES

Acceptable Contractor Certification

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

North Dakota Department of Transportation, Construction Services SFN 61040 (4-2017)

1 45		ject Number ⊋-1-094(123)345		Prime Contractor ABC Contracting				
Spec.	Code	Name/Description		Material Certifie	d			ory identification heat number, etx.)
704 1000 Traffic Control Signs		Traffic Control Signs	Devi	ices		3D, 3M DG3 4090, 4081/83		
704	1060	Delineator Drums	Devi	ices		TrafFix,	18044-LI	D-LG, 18040-LD
754	110	Flat Sheet for Signs - Type XI Refl. Sheeti	g She	eting, Backing		3D Alum 894.02E		#M DG# 4090, XI
754	206	Steel Galv Posts - Telescoping Perf. Tube	Post	ts, Hardware		Allied Tu	ube & Co	nduit posts, X2 hardv
754	530	Panel for Signs - Type XI Reflective Sheet	ng She	eting, Backing		Rocal, 3	M, Avery	/
704	1065	Traffic Cones	Devi	ices		Lakeside	e Plastics	s 2825-10
tify the above Manufacturer presentative	e listed materi r ⊠*Supp	*Title	nerica" if ap	pplicable.	*Organization	re Inc		
tify the above Manufacture	e listed materi r ⊠*Supp	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A plier*Subcontractor	nerica" if ap	pplicable.	*Organization Traffic Supplier	rs, Inc.		
tify the above Manufacturer presentative Supplier dress	e listed materi r ⊠*Supp	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vier*Subcontractor	merica" if ap	*City		1	*State	*ZIP Code
tify the above Manufacturer presentative Supplier dress Box 1	e listed materi r ⊠*Supp	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vier*Subcontractor	nerica" if ap	*City Bismarck		1	*State ND	*ZIP Code 58501
tify the above Manufacturer presentative Supplier dress	e listed materi r ⊠*Supp Name	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vier*Subcontractor	nerica" if ap	*City		1		
Manufacturee oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature e Supplier	e listed materi r ⊠*Supţ Name n	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vier*Subcontractor		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021		1		
Manufacturer oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature Supplier	e listed mater r	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vlier*Subcontractor *Title VP als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021		1		
Manufacturer oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature Supplier tify the above the Contractor	e listed mater r 🔄 *Supp Name r e listed mater r Representat	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vlier*Subcontractor *Title VP als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021 pplicable. Tritle		1		
Manufacturer oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature Supplier tify the above tify the above contractor contractor nature	e listed mater r 🔄 *Supp Name r e listed mater r Representat	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vlier*Subcontractor *Title VP als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021 pplicable. Title Superintendent Date		1		
Manufacturer oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature <i>Supplier</i> tify the above ne Contractor Contractor contractor mature	e listed mater r 🔄 *Supp Name r e listed mater r Representat	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vlier*Subcontractor *Title VP als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021 pplicable. Title Superintendent Date		1		
Manufacturer oresentative Supplier dress Box 1 nature <i>Supplier</i> tify the above ne Contractor Contractor contractor mature	e listed mater r 🔄 *Supp Name r e listed mater r Representat	als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A vlier*Subcontractor *Title VP als meet contract requirements, including "Buy A		*City Bismarck *Date 5/26/2021 pplicable. Title Superintendent Date		1		

Unacceptable Contractor Certification

This Certification is not acceptable and should be returned to the Contractor to be completed:

	epartmen	RTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE t of Transportation, Construction Services							
PCN 12345		Project Number QQ-1-094(123)345		Prime Contractor ABC Contracting					
Spec.	Spec. Code Name/Description			Material Certified		Factory identification (lot, bin, heat number, etx.)			
704	1000	Traffic Control Signs	Device	s		N/A	N/A is not	t OK	
704	1060	Delineator Drums	Device	s		N/A	N/A is not	t OK	
754	110	Flat Sheet for Signs - Type XI Refl. Sheeting	Sheetin	ng, Backing		N/A	N/A is no	t OK	
754	206	Steel Galv Posts - Telescoping Perf. Tube	Posts,	Hardware		Leavir	ng this bla	nk is not OK	
754	530	Panel for Signs - Type XI Reflective Sheeting	Sheetir	ng, Backing		Leavin	ng this bla	nk is not OK	
704	1065	Traffic Cones	Device	s		Leavin	ng this bla	nk is not OK	
	e listed ma r ⊠*Si	w is only applicable as determined by Contractor terials meet contract requirements, including "Buy America upplier "Subcontractor "Title VP	a" if appli	identifying numbe	*Organization Traffic Suppliers	s, Inc.			
*Address PO Box 1		I						*ZIP Code 58501	
*Signature Joe	Sapplier			*Date 5/26/2021					
I certify the above	listed ma	terials meet contract requirements, including "Buy America	a" if appli	cable.					
Prime Contractor	Represen	tative		Title					
Signature ALL	CERTIFIC	ATIONS MUST BE SIGNED BY PRIME CONTRACTOR		Date					
Comments									

MANUFACTURE CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE EXAMPLES

Acceptable Manufacturer Certification

MANUFACTURER CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE North Dakota Department of Transportation, Construction Services SFN 61041 (4-2017) PCN Project Number 12345 QQ-1-094(123)345 Prime Contractor Manufacturer ABC Contractor Generic Manufacturing, Inc. Factory identification Spec. Code Name/Description Material Certified Place of Manufacture (lot, bin, heat number, etc.) 64"x6" Base Slab, 58"x6" Cover Slab, M048B-06604, M048C-05806 722 0100 Manhole 48" Bismarck, ND Adjusting Rings 48" Manhole Barrel w/Steps, Gaskets 722 1100 Manhole Riser 48" M048N Bismarck, ND Pipe Conc Reinf 24" CL III - Storm 714 0620 24" CL 3 RCP, Gaskets RO24E-CL3B Bismarck, ND Drain 0151 Geosynthetic Material Type R1 030120 709 Geosynthetics - GT 180 Bismarck, ND I certify the above listed materials meet contract requirements, including "Buy America" if applicable. Manufacturer's Representative Title Jane Manufacturer Manufacturing Engineer Address State ZIP Code City PO Box 1 Bismarck ND 58501 Signature Date 5/26/2021 Jane Manufacturer I certify the above listed materials meet contract requirements, including "Buy America" if applicable. Prime Contractor Name Title ABC Contracting Superintendent Signature Date 5-26-2021 Ine Contractor

Comments

Unacceptable Manufacturer Certification

This Certification is not acceptable and should be returned to the Contractor to be completed:

Nor		Department of T	IFICATE OF COMPLIANCE ransportation, Construction Services							
PCI	N 12345				Project Number NH-NHU-9-099(125)000					
Prin	ne Contracto	r ABC Co	ontractor		Manufacturer Steel Manufacturing Inc.					
	Item	Spec-Code	Name/Description		Material Certified	Factory identifical (lot, bin, heat numbe		Place of Manufacture		
	35	714-5015	PIPE CORR STEEL .064IN 18IN	Annular 16ga Gal	vanized (2-2/3" x 1/2") Corrugated Steel Pipe	Available upon request, after d	elivery	Fargo, ND		
	36	714-5810	END SECT CORR STEEL .064IN 18IN	Galvanized Flared	I End Section	Available upon request, after d	elivery	Fargo, ND		
	37	714-6501	END SECT-TRAVERSABLE METAL 18IN	Galvanized 6:1 Sl	oped End Section	Available upon request, after d	elivery	Fargo, ND		
			s meet contract requirements, including "Buy America" if applicable	<u>.</u>	L ear	Available upon 1	request -	Not OK		
ма		Representative s Manufacturer			Title Quality Assurance Manager					
Add	ress	1500 20th St N			City Fargo		State ND	ZIP Code 58102		
Sigr		gitally signed by ate: 2020.05.15 1			•		Date 5/15/2020			
	rtify the abov ne Contracto		s meet contract requirements, including "Buy America" if applicable	a.	Trat_					
Prin	ne Contracto		Contractor		Project Manager					
Sigr	Signature Wasn't signed - Not OK									
Con	nments		Additional Project Information (if applicable) Project Name: Project Owner: Engineering Tim: Eng. Project #: Project Location:		Notes		Ship-To Addre	<u>55:</u>		

SAMPLE LETTER OF PRODUCTION COSTS STATEMENT OF PRODUCTION COSTS

TO: North Dakota Department of Transportation District Office Grand Forks, ND

This is to certify that we have crushed and stockpiled, at the pit site located in the following

location

NE25-158-35

3,000 tons of Class 4 for use on Project No. F-6-111((801)182 in Walsh County. The material meets contract specifications and will meet contract specifications at the time of placement.

The following are our costs for producing this material:

Moving to Job Site	\$.22
Stripping	.25
Crushing	1.00
Stockpiling	.30
Supervision	.13

Total per Ton \$1.90

Signed by

Title Estimator

DOCUMENTATION EXAMPLES

PQE as Source Document

708 - 1430 - FIBER R	OLLS 12IN
Unit: LF QTY:	21,514.000 Price: 2.500
Pay Quantity Date:	04/06/2016 🗂 (mm/dd/yyyy)
Source Document	No Additional
Change Orders	NONE
Contractor Approval	: O Yes 🖲 No
Remarks	
File Comments:	
File Comments.	
Added By:	DM Cars
New Attachments	Browse
	Add More Files
Approval Status	Not Checked
District Finals	Not Completed
Construction Finals	Not Completed
Locations:	
Quantity	Location
27.000	Approach Pipe 3010+23 Outlet
Add More Rows	

All required information including, location, date, and quantity are entered directly in CARS. SFN 10004, Pay Quantity Report, was not filled out and is not needed.

Source Document Attached

Project: SOIA-5-094(100)056	
SubProject: 1 - GRADING, BRIDGE, STRUCTURE REMOVAL, BOX CULVERT, S	5
Pay Quantity Maintenance 🤜	
302 - 120 - AGGREGATE BASE COURSE CL 5	
Unit: TON QTY: 104,511.000 Price:	
Pay Quantity Date: 06/27/2015	
Source Document: Attached Document	
Change Order: NONE	
Contractor Approved: Y	
Remarks: See attached haul sheet	
Added By: Jason R. Fischer	
Release Flag: P	
Attachment:	Browse
» Pay Quantity Attachments	
07/02/2015 PQ 302 120 PQ 302-120 Class 5	6-27-15.pdf
Locations:	
Quantity Location	
5,139.500 3045+00 to 3088+00	

Attached Document is selected as the Source Document and the Contractor Haul Summary is attached. The quantity from the Summary is entered in the Quantity box. The Pay Quantity Date corresponds with the date on the Summary.

Excavation

t En Savan Ballan ben ginne norspans Savanne forger greber ge Nelle Ball Train	- @=\$\$\$\$4\$@€\$ ■+0+0+0+0+0+0+4+0 - ==	.1918	Calculation Method Prismoidal C Grid Points:
	MAQNED ACKS		Calculation: TIN to TIN V From TIN: CoalOR tin Q
1443-3444555	8 8		To TIN: CoalORtin Q
agaabard	00-502 and 10	2	T Use Range: Plange
ARANAZAN ARANAZAN ARATAAAN	consider 1		Volume Calculations
35556454			T Use Factors
autan sea	A A	n.m.m.a.	Cut Volume : 1675.991 CY
	- AND		Fill Volume : 9.957 CY Balance : 1666 034 CY
	ALC: NOT		Area : 3854 894 SY
			Cutput To ASCII Rie: Create Rie Y
	Coal Excavation		Ver.
and the second second	Volume = 1666 CY Tin to Tin Calculation Geopak		Boundary Selection
and the second	Tin to Tin Calculation Geopak R:\project\50094058.100/district\Survey\CalculationsUsin	gSurveys/Coal Excavation	Volumes By Region: Regions
			Volume Polygons
		4	Fill Volume Polygons
· O · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	61	TA D Comerciale Comercial	Process
666 CY of good mate	rial was excavated to replace	the material. Total o	ommon excavation
Ū	ex)+1666 (replacement) = 33		
ayment - 1000 (coal	exi+1000 (replacement) = 33	Sz Ci (pay total)	
· 1	21	1/4/16	
ngineer Japan	000	Date _ 6/4/15	and the second second
	1 +	Date # 6/4 3.	
ontractor Much	. P DALLAT	Data 18 1141	1
	m schworn	Date My OI I ISI	0
<u></u>	M. ACKNONY	Date 4 6 13	0
<u></u>	- servery	Date 4 6 1 15	

*****	*****		
******		****	*************
**************************************	lume Report Thu Jur	****	*************
**************************************	lume Report Thu Jun	****************	**************************************
**************************************		****************	**************************************
**************************************	lume Report Thu Jur lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf< td=""><td>****************</td><td>**************************************</td></coalf<>	****************	**************************************
* TIN to TIN Vo. * From TIN <coal * Prismoidal Vo.</coal 	lume Report Thu Jur lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf< td=""><td>****************</td><td>**************************************</td></coalf<>	****************	**************************************
* TIN to TIN Vo. * From TIN <coal * Prismoidal Vo.</coal 	lume Report Thu Jur lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf< td=""><td>****************</td><td>**************************************</td></coalf<>	****************	**************************************
* TIN to TIN Vo: * From TIN <coa: * Prismoidal Vo:</coa: 	lume Report Thu Jur lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf< td=""><td>**************************************</td><td>**************************************</td></coalf<>	**************************************	**************************************
* TIN to TIN Vo: * From TIN <coa: * Prismoidal Vo:</coa: 	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume</coalf 	**************************************	**************************************
<pre>* TIN to TIN Vo. * From TIN <coal *="" *<="" pre="" prismoidal="" vo.=""></coal></pre>	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** **
TIN to TIN Vo. From TIN <coal Prismoidal Vo.</coal 	lume Report Thu Jur LOR.tin> to TIN <coalf Lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** **
<pre>* TIN to TIN Vo: * From TIN <coa: * Prismoidal Vo: * Total Cut = * Total Cut =</coa: </pre>	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** **
<pre>* TIN to TIN Vo: * From TIN <coal * Prismoidal Vo: * * Total Cut = * Total Fill = * Area =</coal </pre>	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards 3854.894 Sq Yard</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** **
<pre>* TIN to TIN Vo. * From TIN <coal *="" area="*" balance="</pre" cut="*" prismoidal="" total="" vo.=""></coal></pre>	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** **
TIN to TIN VO From TIN <coat Prismoidal Vo Total Cut = Total Fill = Area = Balance =</coat 	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards 3854.894 Sq Yard 1666.034 Cubic Y</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** ** ** ** ** **
TIN to TIN VO From TIN <coat Prismoidal Vo Total Cut = Total Fill = Area = Balance =</coat 	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards 3854.894 Sq Yard</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** ** ** ** ** **
TIN to TIN VO From TIN <coat Prismoidal Vo Total Cut = Total Fill = Area = Balance =</coat 	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards 3854.894 Sq Yard 1666.034 Cubic Y</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** ** ** ** ** **
TIN to TIN VO From TIN <coat Prismoidal Vo Total Cut = Total Fill = Area = Balance =</coat 	lume Report Thu Jun lOR.tin> to TIN <coalf lume 1675.991 Cubic Yards 9.957 Cubic Yards 3854.894 Sq Yard 1666.034 Cubic Y</coalf 	**************************************	** L5 ** ** ** ** ** ** **

This summary sheet was prepared and attached to the PQE to document excavation. This style of summary sheet could be used to document any item paid by the ton and measured with a survey. The signatures are not required for this type of documentation.

Mulching

	Mulching 708 5500
Temp seed 7 - Temp seed 4 -	
Total -	3046 SY = 0.63 acres
	mulched on 5/25/15 by Martin Construction. It had previously been mulched, but had then been new layer of mulch was requested by the Project Engineer.
Prepared by: I	Bryan Strasser 6/1/15
	/ Temp Seed 7 / Area - 1533 SY
	Pay Items 708 2260 Seeding CL IV
	708 5500 Mulching
	p Seed 4 ⁴
Area	- 1513 SY
708- 708-	2260 Seeding CL IV

This documentation was prepared and attached to a PQE. This same format may be used for any item measured by area.

Flagging

INSPECTO	OR SY	nay		WEEK ENDIN	16: JULY 20 TO 25 - 2015
	MARSHA				AMMY BARTLETT
DATE	DAY	HRS WORKED	TOTAL	WORK ITEM DATE	DAY HRS WORKED TOTAL
-	SUNDAY	+	and the second second		SUNDAY
7-20-20	TUESDAY	7:00 AM 7:30 PM	12.5	7-20-2015	TUESDAY
-	WEDNESDAY	-	11000	-	WEDNESDAY
-	THURSDAY	+		-	THURSDAY
	FRIDAY			-	SATURDAY
See a	Contraction	WEEKLY TOTAL	12.5		WEEKLY TOTAL 12.5
	-			NAME	
	NDREA PA	RKER		WORK ITEM	N
WORK ITE	DAY	HRS WORKED	TOTAL	DATE	DAY HRS WORKED TOTAL
-	SUNDAY	-	-		SUNDAY
7-20-2	MONDAY	7.00 AM 7.30 PM	12.5	-	MONDAY TUESDAY
-	TUESDAY				WEDNESDAY
-	WEDNESDAY		- 7		THURSDAY
-	FRIDAY	-	-		FRIDAY
- 100	SATURDAY		+	-	SATURDAY
	and the	WEEKLY TOTAL	12.5		WEEKLY TOTAL
	Art and			NAME	
NAME		and the second second		WORK ITE	=ħ4
NORK ITEM		HRS WORKED	TOTAL	DATE	DAY HRS WORKED TOTAL
DATE	DAY	HRSWORLD			SUNDAY
	MONDAY				MONDAY
	TUESDAY				TUESDAY WEDNESDAY
	WEDNESDAY			-	THURSDAY
	THURSDAY		-		FRIDAY
	FRIDAY				SATURDAY
Contraction of the second	SATURDAY				WEEKLY TOTAL
		WEEKLY TOTAL		-	
AGGING PA	CODE 0100	DR WEEK: 37	7.5	PILOT C	AR PAY TOTAL FOR WEEK:
	-	- 00,	1		DATE

An iPad was used to take this picture of a flagger summary sheet and attach it to the PQE in the field.